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STOVER PARK
Name: STOVER PARK
County: Devon
District: Teignbridge (District Authority)
Parish: Teigngrace

|abel.localisation:  Latitude: 50.558450
Longitude: -3.6395055
National Grid Reference: SX 83964 74472
Map: Download afull scale map (PDF)

label.overview:  Heritage Category: Park and Garden
Grade: I
List Entry Number: 1001268
Datefirst listed: 07-Jun-1995

Details

Mid and late C18 parkland and pleasure grounds, and mid C19 gardens, pleasure grounds and parkland for which James Veitch
provided advice.

HISTORIC DEVELOPMENT

The Stover estate, comprising an existing house known as Stover Lodge and an extensive tract of heathland, was purchased in
1765 by James Templer. The son of an Exeter tradesman, Templer had been apprenticed to an Exeter architect, John Bickley,
and subsequently made his fortune erecting government buildings in Madras and Plymouth in partnership with Thomas Parlby
and Henry Line. Stover Lodge was demolished and between 1776 and 1780 James Templer erected a new house, probably to
his own design (Cherry and Pevsner 1989), on a new site to the south of the earlier building. A plan of the estate drawn in
the 1780s (DRO) shows extensive gardens round the new house with walks through adjacent plantations. On James Templer's
death in 1782, Stover passed to his son, aso James (d 1813), who with his brothers George and John was responsible for the
reconstruction of Teigngrace churchin 1787. James |1 also constructed the Stover Canal to the east of the park in 1790-2, to the
designs of Thomas Gray. The canal ran from Newton Abbot to Ventiford, and was used toirrigate and drain land around Stover,
and to carry ball clay and, after 1820, granite from the Haytor quarries on Dartmoor, which were owned by the family (Cherry
and Pevsner 1989). James I1's brother, George (d 1843), inherited Stover in 1813, and in 1829 sold the estate to the eleventh
Duke of Somerset. The Duke made alterations to the House ¢ 1830, and by 1834 had consulted James Veitch on improvements
to the pleasure grounds and gardens. Stover was sold by the fourteenth Duke of Somerset in 1932 and the House was converted
into agirls school, in which use it continues today (1999). Parkland and woodland was acquired by the Forestry Commission,
which in 1979 sold some 114 acres (47.5ha) to Devon County Council for use as a country park. The site remains in divided
corporate ownership today (1999).

DESCRIPTION

LOCATION, AREA, BOUNDARIES, LANDFORM, SETTING Stover Park is situated ¢ 3km north-west of Newton Abbot, ¢
3km south-east of Bovey Tracey, and immediately west of the village of Teigngrace. Stover Park liesimmediately to the south-
east of the A38 road, which runs south-west from Exeter to Plymouth. The ¢ 180ha site comprises some 20ha of gardens and
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pleasure grounds, and ¢ 160ha of parkland, lakes and plantations. To the north the site is bounded by the late C20 A38 dual-
carriageway, while to the west it adjoins the A382 road which runs south-east from Bovey Tracey to Newton Abbot; a minor
road forms the north-east boundary. To the south and east the site adjoins agricultural land. The site rises gradually towards
its south-west corner, with extensive views north-west to Dartmoor, north-east to the Haldon Hills, and south-east to the sea
at Teignmouth.

ENTRANCES AND APPROACHES Stover Park is today (1999) approached from the A382 road which forms the western
boundary of the site, at Higher Lodge which lies ¢ 1km south-east of the junction of the A382 with the A38, and ¢ 300m south-
west of the House. Opposite this entrance, but excluded from the site here registered, is Icehouse Copse, within which stands
alate C18 or early C19 icehouse (ibid). Higher Lodge (listed grade I1) isamid C19 neo-classical structure, which formed part
of the improvements undertaken by the eleventh Duke of Somerset after 1829. From Higher Lodge the drive passes north-east
for ¢ 400m through the pleasure grounds, before turning north-west for ¢ 30m to approach an elliptical carriage turn below
the south-east facade of the House. Lower Lodge, standing at the south-east corner of the estate, gives access from a minor
road to the west of Teigngrace village some 1.25km south-east of Stover House. The south-east drive runs north-west parallel
to the site boundary for ¢ 600m, before sweeping west through woodland and parkland for ¢ 800m to approach the turning
circle from the north-east.

From the mid C18 until the late C20, the main approach to Stover Park was from the A38 road to the north, at a point ¢ 160m
south-west of Heathfield Cross. Granite Lodge (listed grade I1*) comprises apair of single-storey Greek Doric buildingslinked
by afour-column screen, built ¢ 1830 as part of the eleventh Duke of Somerset's improvements to the estate. From the Lodge
the north drive leads south-east for ¢ 500m through Newpark Plantation, crossing the outflow of the northern lake ¢ 1km north-
north-west of the House, and continuing south-south-east through Stable Copse for ¢ 200m, before emerging into the park.
Some 200m north-west of the House the drive crosses the outflow of the lower 1ake on a late C18 three-arched stone bridge
(listed grade 1), before ascending the slope to the east of the pleasure grounds to join the south-east drive at a point ¢ 150m
east of the House. As aresult of late C20 upgrading of the A38 road, the north driveis today (1999) disused.

PRINCIPAL BUILDING Stover House (listed grade I1*) stands on an eminence at the south-west corner of the park. The
House, constructed between 1776 and 1780, probably to the designs of its owner, James Templer (ibid), is an austere Palladian
villabuilt in granite ashlar. The basement is rusticated, and canted bays extend from the north-west and south-east facades. A
portico of ¢ 1830 comprising six Greek Doric columnsis connected to the south-east canted bay by curving brick walls, and is
reached by a double flight of steps. To the west a quadrant wing connects the main House to a two-storey pavilion, originally
containing service rooms. The pavilion, quadrant wing and south-east portico formed part of the alterations made to the House
by the eleventh Duke of Somerset after his purchase of the estate in 1829. The House has been used as a school since 1932,
but has been little altered.

GARDENS AND PLEASURE GROUNDS The gardens and pleasure grounds lie to the north-east of the House, with further
areas of lawns and pleasure grounds to the west and south-west. Terraces below the north-west and north-east facades of the
House are retained by low walls ornamented with urns (listed grade 11). On the north-west side of the House two broad terraces,
divided by grass banks with stone steps aligned on the canted bay on the north-west facade of the House, break the steep slope
below the House. From the terraces there are views to Dartmoor across the park, from which they are separated by a stone
retaining wall (listed grade I1). The late C19 OS shows the upper terrace laid out with a broad walk running from south-west
to north-east, and a series of rectangular flower beds. This arrangement no longer survives (1999).

At the northern end of the lower terrace walk, ¢ 80m north of the House, stands a small |ate C18 classical summerhouse built
of limestone ashlar, which formed part of James Templer's design. A walk to the west of this structure leads to the main area
of pleasure grounds which lie ¢ 100m north-east of the House, below the north-east terrace. Below this terrace is an unusual
grotto (listed grade 11*) which is constructed from cyclopean ashlar blocks with two entrances flanked by windows set within
giant arches. The interior is barrel-vaulted in rubble stone. The grotto, which lies ¢ 80m north of the House, was formed from
the stables built by James Templer in 1779 (datestone), probably as part of the eleventh Duke of Somerset's mid C19 alterations
when the terraces and summerhouse were superimposed over the formerly free-standing structure. The stables are shown in
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their original position on the Tithe map of 1838. New stables, also known as the Clock House (listed grade I1*) were built ¢
1840 some 250m south-west of the House. These are now (1999) used as classrooms.

An area south-west of the House islaid out as informal lawns planted with specimen trees, among which most of the mid and
late C20 school buildings have been built. The largest of these, constructed ¢ 1980, is an octagona wooden hall designed by
Pinelog Ltd.

James Veitch (1792-1863) advised the eleventh Duke of Somerset on the improvement of the gardens and pleasure grounds
from 1834, with further work continuing until March 1842 (Gray 1995).

PARK To the south of the House, beyond alevel area now (late C20) used as playing fields, the parkland drops away to the
wooded southern perimeter. The ground also falls away to the north of the House and pleasure grounds, towards the site of
the old house ¢ 300m north-west of the late C18 mansion, and the serpentine lake beyond. This is the lower, and smaller of
two lakes, and is formed by the damming of the Liverton Brook which runs from west to east across the centre of the park.
The 5.6ha irregular Stover lake ¢ 1.25km north-west of the House is formed by the damming of the Ventiford Brook. James
Templer was responsible for draining the former heathland and also for the creation of the lakes. It has been suggested however
that the southern lake formed part of an ornamental landscape associated with the earlier house, and that Stover Bridge (listed
grade 1) which carriesthe Bovey Tracey to Newton Abbot road over the inflow, is part of this scheme (Gray nd). Stover Bridge
was, according to a partially legible datestone, constructed in 1773 or 1775. The northern lake is probably a later addition,
dating from the expansion of the park northwards, and may have been connected with work on the Stover Canal which was
begun in 1790 to the east of the site.

The park today (1999) remains pasture with scattered individua trees and ornamental clumps. The open parkland to the north
and south of the House is enclosed by extensive plantations. To the west the A382 road is screened by boundary planting
including Blacksticks Plantation ¢ 1km north-west of the House, whileto the north Newpark Plantation formsatriangular block
of woodland between the A38 road and the minor road which forms the site boundary to the north-east. Stable Copse, Goilmore
Plantation and New Orchard Copse together with other woodland, encloses the park to the east. Plantations around the House
were established by the 1780s, when an estate plan (published 1803) showed a network of walks through the woodland. The
plantations were expanded by James Templer |l in the late C18 and early C19, and again by the dukes of Somerset from 1829,
with advice from James Veitch in the 1830s and early 1840s. The expansion of the plantations continued into the C20, when
the woodland around Stover Lake was acquired by the Forestry Commission for commercial timber production.

KITCHEN GARDEN An irregular-shaped walled kitchen garden lies ¢ 150m west of the House and immediately to the north
of the Clock House, towhichitswallsareintegrally linked. Thelate C19 OS map shows an arrangement of large beds separated
by walks with glasshouses built against the inner face of the north-west wall, and a range of sheds and stores on the outer face
of the north wall. A free-standing glasshouse is shown ¢ 80m north-east of the stables, to the south of a group of conifers on
the east side of the walled garden. The kitchen garden appears to have formed part of the eleventh Duke of Somerset's mid
C19 dlterations to Stover.
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Lega

This garden or other land is registered under the Historic Buildings and Ancient Monuments Act 1953 within the Register of
Historic Parks and Gardens by Historic England for its special historic interest.
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